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ADDENDUM #2 
RFP: Flexible Payment Solution 

PIN: 83622Y0034 
 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- --- 
Section 1: Vendor Questions and Answers 
Section 2: Acknowledgement of Addenda 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Section 1: Vendor Questions and Answers 
 

1. What accounting system does DOF use that an FPS would need to integrate to? Or does DOF use a gateway that an 

FPS would connect to? 

Answer: DOF integrates to the CNY’s general ledger.  This system is known internally as Financial Management 

System (FMS).  FMS was originally an off-the-shelf ERP customized to specifications determined by the City 

Comptroller’s office and is therefore functionally a proprietary system.  CPSS serves as the point of integration to FMS 

for all City agencies or third-party vendors. 

 

2. What is the City’s annual credit/debit card dollar volume it currently processes? 

Answer: There is considerable month-to-month fluctuation.  However average monthly volumes from 2018 through 
June 2022 were $74,417,724, which equates to an annualized total of slightly more than $893,000,000. 
 

3. How many credit/debit card transactions in a year does the City currently process? 

Answer: 4,608,362 using the same methodology as in question 2 

4. What is the total dollar amount of eChecks or ACH the City currently processes annually?   

Answer: $16.2 billion using the same methodology as in question 2 

5. How many eCheck transactions does the City process annually? 

Answer: 256,661 using the same methodology as in question 2 

 

6. How many credit card terminals does the city currently have?  And what is the make and model? 

Answer: 126 actively in use.  Several models are in production, and we anticipate phasing in replacements under a new 
merchant services award to be executed shortly.  Our contract allows the use of a wide variety of brands and models. 

 
7. What is your highest and lowest transaction amount? 

Answer: Citywide there are over 100 different payment types with an average transaction size ranging from $16 - 
$88,000.  Not all payment types would be eligible for FPS. 
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8. What % of the total $30 billion the DOF currently collects qualifies under the heading “A Flexible Payment Solution?” 

Answer: Providing a specific number would be misleading.  Many demographic, policy, macroeconomic and other 

factors will influence a customer’s decision to enroll in an FSP.  The decision is also subject to unforeseeable political 

decisions or legislative actions outside an agency’s control.  Liabilities eligible for the city’s homegrown FSPs also 

require a customer to apply and be qualified to receive support, which may depress enrolment.  A primary objective of 

the RFI is to identify technologies that could streamline access to payment plans for customers who request them.  At 

this stage we prefer to respond by describing the universe of payment types for which FSPs could be offered.  These 

include property tax payments, certain parking violation liabilities, water bills, and certain classes of administrative 

judgements. In 2021, approximately 77% of NYC receivables were for charges belonging to these categories.   

 

9.  What software does the DOF intend to use to ensure integration capabilities? 
Answer: We do not understand the question.   

 
10.  What pricing structure is the DOF currently on and rate %? 

Answer:  Pricing guidelines are specific to the payment type, are generally determined by legislation and are a matter 
of public record. 

 
11. Will DOF accept an electronic signature, such as DocuSign, on Attachment B:  

Acknowledgment of Addenda? 
Answer: The Acknowledgement of addenda page is no longer needed because it is all in Passport.  

12. Organizational Capacity - There is mention that we should provide details regarding "Organizational Capacity," could 
you further clarify what you are looking for in this section? 

 Answer: We are looking for answers to the questions listed on pages 7-8. Refer to the “Organizational Capacity” 
section on page 7. 

 
13. Possible Cost and Payment Structures / Return on Investment to the City - Given the wide range of products (ranging 

for 6 weeks-36 months - at different costs) it may be a bit difficult to model out the ROI and cost. Are you looking for 
specific programs and pricing in this RFI? Or more of a high-level overview on what our cost structure looks like?  

 Answer: We are looking more at the high-level overview of cost structures and components, which can include 
different pricing models based on our ostensible use cases. However, we are fine with reviewing proposals that also 
include estimated cost ranges noting caveats where you see fit. 

 
14. NDA - Do you have a mutual NDA you can forward to me? I would imagine if we sent you ours it would take some 

time to complete before the submission of the RFI is due. 
 Answer: A mutual NDA will be included as part of the solicitation package in the future. However, this is a Request  

for Information and NDA is not needed to be submitted with the proposal.   
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15. There is a section under basic requirements that "Any pages hosted by solution provider must pass required 
transactional data to DOF’s Finance Informational Technology (FIT) division"  
What sorts of information are you interested in receiving? Some information may require a separate data sharing 
agreement between both parties.  
Answer: Broadly speaking the solution must be able to pass transactional data fields used to both describe the 
descriptive business-related elements of the transaction (e.g., Violation #, license #, Issuance Date, other unique key 
specifically associated with the charge), the payer elements (e.g., name, address, email) and the 
administrative/financial elements (e.g., full, or partial payer account information, transaction ID, receipt number, 
time/date stamp). The exact elements may vary based on the specific integration model. In the event of a formal 
procurement, the City would require mutual standard data sharing forms per Procurement Policy Board (PPB) and 
DOF guidelines as is typical for vendor agreements with DOF. 
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------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Section 2: Acknowledgement of Addenda 
 
Acknowledgement of the addendum is not needed because this is for informational purposes only and the process 
will be done in Passport.  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 

ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS REMAIN THE SAME 
 
 
 
 
 
Roman Shpolyansky, Agency Chief Contracting Officer 

 
 
 

 


